
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Historic Preservation Commission and Staff Seating 

The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Historic Preservation Commission. 
For information call (760) 839-4671. 

CAROL REA 
Chair 

CAROL BREITENFELD 
Commissioner 

MICHAEL LEE 
Commissioner 

JAMES SPANN 
Vice-Chair 

MARC CORRELL 
Commissioner 

JESSE HANWIT 
Commissioner 

TY PAULSON 
Minutes Clerk 

GREG DANSKIN 
Commissioner 

 
 

  

AGENDA 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 

201 N. Broadway 
City Hall Council Chambers 

3:00 p.m. 

September 21, 2017 

A. CALL TO ORDER  3:00 p.m. 

B. FLAG SALUTE 

C. ROLL CALL 

D. REVIEW OF MINUTES: July 20, 2017 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Commission on any item of interest to the 
public, before or during the Commission's consideration of the item. If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, please fill out a 
speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the Chairman. 

Electronic Media: Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at which it is to be shown. 

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system. The media must be labeled 
with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact information for the person 
presenting the media. 

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. City staff will 
queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak. Materials shown to the Commission during the 
meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the City. 

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under "Oral Communications" which is listed at the 
beginning and end of the agenda. All persons addressing the Historic Preservation Commission are asked to state their names for 
the public record. 

Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting: Any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Historic 
Preservation Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division 
located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services to individuals with disabilities. Please contact 
the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643, with any requests for reasonable accommodation, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Historic Preservation Commission Agenda 
September 21, 2017 
Page 2 

 
 
 

E. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 
 

"Under State law, all items under Written Communications can have no action and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 

 
F. ORAL COMMUNICATION: 
 

"Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and will be referred to the 
staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." This is the opportunity for 
members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business within the jurisdiction of the 
Commission. 

 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

 
H. CURRENT BUSINESS: 

 

1. MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0004: 
 

REQUEST:  Mills Act for Local Register Queen Anne Cottage in the OEN 

ZONING/LOCATION: R-1-6 / 307 East 6th Avenue 

APPLICANTS:  Todd & Emily Price    STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 

 

2. LOCAL REGISTER/MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0005: 
 

REQUEST:  Local Register & Mills Act for Clapboard Cottage in the OEN 

ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-6 / 1150 South Juniper Street 

APPLICANTS:  Bret & Tennille Marshall    STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 

 

3. LOCAL REGISTER/MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0006: 
 

REQUEST:  Local Register & Mills Act for Mid-Century Modern “Brothers House” in the OEN 

ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-6 / 625 South Juniper Street 

APPLICANT:  Larry Gonzales     STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 

 

4. LOCAL REGISTER/MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0007: 
 

REQUEST:  Local Register & Mills Act for California Bungalow “Rombauer House” in the OEN 

ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-6 / 152 East 11th Avenue 

APPLICANTS:  Tony Maccianti & Susannah Cooper  STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 

 

5. LOCAL REGISTER/MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0008: 
 

REQUEST:  Local Register & Mills Act for Colonial Revival “Webb House” in the OEN 

ZONING/LOCATION:  R-1-6 / 514 East 6th Avenue 

APPLICANT:  Sharon Sanders     STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 



 
Historic Preservation Commission Agenda 
September 21, 2017 
Page 3 
 

 

 

6. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM 17-0138: 
 

REQUEST:  Proposed replacement of Historic Downtown storefront removed illegally 

ZONING/LOCATION: Historic Downtown District/ 125 East Grand Avenue 

APPLICANT:  Michael Bao Xue     STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 
 

7. PROJECT INFORMATION ON RITZ THEATER: 
 

REQUEST:  Seeking comments on possible restoration/rehabilitation of Historic Downtown Ritz 

Theater façade  

ZONING/LOCATION: Historic Downtown District/ 309 East Grand Avenue 

APPLICANT:  June Rady     STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive Comments 

 

8. PROJECT INFORMATION ON CENTRE CITY PKWY SPECIFIC PLAN 
 

STAFF: Assistant Planning Director Mike Strong 

 

9. AD HOC WORK GROUP REPORT ON MILLS ACT PROPERTIES (Breitenfeld, Rea, Spann) 
 

REQUEST:  Commission 

 

10. AD HOC WORK GROUP REPORT ON UPDATING THE CITY’S HISTORIC GUIDELINES  

Rea, Danskin, Hanwit) 
 

REQUEST: Staff 

 

11. REPORT ON CALIFORNIA PRESERVATION FOUNDATION 9/14/17 WEBINAR 
 

REQUEST: Staff 

 

Note:  Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require either 
public notice or public hearings. Public comments may be limited to a maximum time of three minutes 
per person. 

 
I. ORAL COMMUNICATION:  

 

"Under State law, all items under Oral Communication can have no action, and will be referred to the 
staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda."  This is the opportunity for 
members of the public to address the commission on any item of business within the jurisdiction of the 
Commission. 

 
J. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED HPC MEETING NOVEMBER 16, 2017.  



  Agenda Item No.: D 

Page 1 of 7 
 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO  
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ESCONDIDO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  

 
July 20, 2017 

 
The regular meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission was called to order at 
3:01 p.m. by Chair Rea in Mitchell Room, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, 
California.  
  
Commissioners present:  Chair Rea, Vice-chair Spann, Commissioner Breitenfeld, 
Commissioner Danskin and Commissioner Hanwit. 
 
Commissioners absent:  Commissioner Lee and Commissioner Correll.  
 
Staff present: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II; Adam Finestone, Principal 
Planner; Mike Strong, Assistant Planning Director; and Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk.   
 

MINUTES:   
 
Moved by Commissioner Spann, seconded by Commissioner Hanwit, to approve the 
minutes of the May 18, 2017 meeting. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  None.     
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  None.  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None.    
 

CURRENT BUSINESS: 
 
1. MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0001:   
 

REQUEST:  Mills Act for Local Register Residence (the Beach House) in the OEN. 
 
Location:  700 South Juniper Street 
 
Chair Rea recused herself from this item.  
 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview of the property and 
list of improvements and noted that staff recommended forwarding a 
recommendation of approval to City Council for the Mills Act Contract and consider 
the proposed CEQA exemption for the property located at 700 South Juniper 
Street.  
 
Commissioner Brietenfeld and staff discussed Items 5 (arbor), 6 (gazebo), and 7 
(xeriscape) as outlined in the Improvement List.  
 
Commissioner Danskin asked if Item 4 (water heater) in the Improvement List fell 
under the Mills Act list. He also asked if maintenance items were kept as a historic 
record. Mr. Bingham noted that the list of improvements became part of the 
contract that is recorded with the County Recorder’s Office. He also stated that the 
timing of conducting said items was left up to the homeowners. Mr. Finestone 
noted that some of the items on the Improvement List would require a building 
permit and would be recorded. Commissioner Danskin felt the Improvement List 
would be a great way to keep historical records about the property.  
 
Commissioner Danskin and staff discussed the process for revising the 
Improvement List on a Mills Act Contract. 
 
Vice-chair Spann felt the retaining wall repair should match the existing retaining 
wall material.  
 

ACTION:  
 
Moved by Commissioner Danskin, seconded by Vice-chair Spann, to approve 
staff’s recommendation. Motion carried. Ayes: Spann, Hanwit, Danskin, and 
Breitenfeld.  Noes:  None. Abstained:  Rea.  (4-0-1)  
 
 
2. MILLS ACT – Case No. HP 17-0002: 
 

REQUEST:  Mills Act for Local Register Residence (the Hudson-Schutte 
Farmhouse) 
 
Location:  742 Sungold Way 
 
Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview of the property and   
list of improvements and noted that staff recommended forwarding a 
recommendation of approval to City Council for the Mills Act Contract and consider 
the proposed CEQA exemption for the property located at 742 Sungold Way.  



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Discussion ensued regarding the location for the property’s historical plaque.  
 
Commissioner Danskin and staff discussed the status of Item 1 (Subflooring) under 
the Improvement List.  
 
Chair Rea and staff discussed making the Mills Act application a more user- 
friendly document.  
 
Chair Rea was extremely impressed with the historical report. She asked that the 
historical plaque be reinstalled. 
 
Commissioner Danskin stated that he was impressed with the historical report from 
Shea Homes.  

ACTION: 

Moved by Vice-chair Spann, seconded by Commissioner Danskin, to approve staff’s 
recommendation.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
3. MILLS ACT IMPROVEMENT LIST CHANGES – Case Nos. HP 17-0003/ 

99-01-HP: 
 

REQUEST:  Amend & Update Existing Mills Act Improvement List  
 
Location:  602 South Grape Street 
 
Commission Spann recused himself from Item 3.  
 
Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview of the property and   
original list of improvements and revised list of improvements. Staff recommended 
approval of the amended improvement list.  
 
Commissioner Danskin referenced Item 2 (exterior porch floors) under the 
Improvement List and noted that faux wood materials did not have the span 
capabilities as wood.  
 
Chair Rea referenced Item 2 (exterior porch floors) and felt real wood would be more 
appropriate. Chair Rea and Commissioner Danskin discussed faux wood products. 
Chair Rea asked that if faux wood was used that it resemble real wood.  
 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
ACTION: 

 
Moved by Commissioner Danskin, seconded by Commissioner Brietenfeld, to 
approve staff’s recommendation. Motion carried. Ayes: Spann, Danskin, Brietenfeld, 
and Hanwit. Noes:  None. Abstained:  Spann. (4-0-1) 
 
 
4. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM 17-0117: 
 

REQUEST:  Expansion of the existing OEN residence and the addition of a new 
garage 
 
Location:  402 East 8th Avenue 
 
Chair Rea recused herself from this item.  
 
Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview of the property and 
the proposed modifications. He stated that staff recommended approval of the 
request to add a rear addition onto the rear of the house and add a garage off of 
the rear alley.  
 
Mr. Bingham and Mr. Oribay Villalobos discussed the exterior material that was 
intended to be used for the addition. Mr. Villalobos noted that the material would be 
stucco and match the existing material.  
 
Commissioner Danskin asked if the property in question had any code enforcement 
issues. Mr. Bingham replied in the negative. Commissioner Danskin asked that the 
structure details match and that the roof pitch of the garage match the house roof.  
 
Commissioner Hanwit asked Mr. Villalobos if he owned the property when the stucco 
was put on. Mr. Villalobos replied in the negative.  

ACTION: 

Moved by Commissioner Danskin, seconded by Commissioner Hanwit, to approve 
staff’s recommendation. Motion carried. Ayes: Spann, Hanwit Danskin, and 
Brietenfeld. Noes:  None. Abstained:  Rea. (4-0-1) 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
5. PROJECT INFORMATION ON SOUTH CENTRE CITY PARKWAY AREA 

PLAN 
 
Mike Strong, Assistant Planning Director, provided the South Centre City Parkway 
Area Plan and requested input.   
 
Commissioner Danskin and staff discussed the graphics in the staff report.  
 
Chair Rea referenced the buildings that could be moved out of Old Escondido and 
suggested adding an option that would zone them residential. Mr. Strong noted 
this was outside the scope of the grant but noted the suggestion would be 
forwarded to the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
Chair Rea asked if the building heights adjacent to OEN could be up for discussion.  
Mr. Strong replied in the affirmative.  
 
 
6. PROJECT INFORMATION ON OEN LIGHTING SURVEY  
 
Mike Strong, Assistant Planning Director, provided the staff report and noted that 
the committee agreed on the green acorn lights as the prototype that would be 
utilized throughout the OEN. He stated that a survey was put together in order to 
prioritize areas needing lighting with the submittal deadline being July 28, 2017. A 
phasing plan would then be developed with funding being solicited. He noted that 
they were looking at SANDAG for possible grant opportunities for funding.  
 
Commissioner Danskin, Chair Rea and Mr. Strong discussed the selection process 
for the lighting.  
 
Commissioner Danskin suggested that the green color remain consistent and that 
the light source have a color temperature that would provide security and not be 
too harsh. He felt the Commission should be able to provide input during the 
process for the lighting.  
 
Chair Rea suggested that the light poles contain banner poles.  
 
Commissioner Danskin felt the light poles throughout the OEN and downtown 
should be consistent. Chair Rea felt a slight variance in the light poles would be 
acceptable.  
 
 
 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
7. AD HOC WORK GROUP REPORT ON MILLS ACT PROPERTIES 
  
Chair Rea reported that they had visited all of the properties in the last batch of 
letters sent out. Mr. Bingham clarified with Chair Rea that no second letters were 
required.  
 
Chair Rea asked if a visit follow-up form letter could be created. Discussion ensued 
regarding crafting an appropriate visit follow-up form letter.  
 
 
8. AD HOC WORK GROUP REPORT ON UPDATING THE CITY’S 

HISTORIC GUIDLINES 
 
Chair Rea noted they were still working on this.  
 
 
9. REPORT ON LIBRARY’S DESIGNING ESCONDIDO EVENT HELD ON 

JULY 18, 2017 
 
Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II; and Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, 
provided a summary of the Library’s Designing Escondido Event Planning staff and 
the Library staff had developed and presented and requested feedback.  
 
Commissioner Danskin suggested utilizing the John Paul the Great film school 
downtown for video archiving. 
 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - None.  
 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 
 
Discussion ensued regarding methods for the helping preserve historic buildings 
not on the local register or survey. Additional discussion ensued regarding a 
clarification of how historians were selected for projects.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding a clarification of the CEQA and Local Register 
process. 
 
Commissioner Brietenfeld stated that her desire would be to have the historic 
downtown properties preserved and incorporated into any new larger 
development.  



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Commissioner Brietenfeld and Chair Rea expressed their concern with the loss of 
the Palm Tree Lodge.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding having all historical reports come through the 
Commission.  
 
Staff was asked to agendize an item to discuss how historic reports were analyzed 
and possible modifications to the process for historical reports.   
 
Commissioner Hanwit expressed her concern with the facade of the condos being 
constructed on Maple, noting her view that the facade should mimic Escondido.  

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 pm. The next regular meeting was scheduled 
for September 21, 2017 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________     _____________________ 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner     Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk 
















































































































































































































































































































	HPC 092117 Agenda.pdf
	HPC Minutes 072017.pdf
	HP17-0004 307 E.6th Ave. 09.21.17.pdf
	HP17-0005 1150 S. Juniper 09.21.17.pdf
	HP17-0006 625 S. Juniper St. 09.21.17 mtg.pdf
	HP17-0007 152 E. 11th 09.12.17 mtg.pdf
	HP17-0008 514 E. 6th Ave. 09.21.17.pdf



